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An nual Report of Holding Companies-FR YM6 

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year 
This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank 
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844(c)(1 )(A)); sections 8(a) 

Thls report form Is to be filed by all top-lier bank holding compa­
nies, top-lier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter­
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by 
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require­
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga­
r1!zallon under Section 211 .23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 
211 .23). (See page one of the general instructions for rnore detail 
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon­
sor, and an organization (or a person) Is not required to respond 
to, an information collection unless It displays a currenlly valld 
0MB control number. 

and 13(a) of the lnterna1ional Banking Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 3106(a) 
imd 3108(a)); sections 11 (a)(1) , 25, and 25A of the Federal 
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a}; and sec­
tions 113, 1 65, 312, 61 8, and 809 of the Dodd-Frank Act (12 U.S.C. 
§§ 5361 , 5365, 5412, 1 850a(c)(1), and 5468{b)(1 )), Return lo the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of
copies specified,

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-lier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In the event 
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is 
a senior official and ls also a director, (he chairman of the board must 
sign the report. If tile hOldfng company is an ESOPJESOT formed as 
a corporation or is an LLC, see tile General Instructions for the 
authorized Individual who must sign lhe report. 
I, Mark A. Holmes 

Name of lhe Holding Company Director and Official 
President & CFO 
'11110 ol the Holding Company Director and Official 

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including 
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre­
pared In conformance wllh the Instructions issued by the Federal 
Resel'\le System and are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 
With respect to information regarding individuals contained in Chi's
reporl, the Reporler certifies that it has the authority to prowde this 
informatfon to lhe Federal ReseNe. The Reporter also certifies 
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of infonnatlon regarding that individual. 
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for 
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information, " 12 C.F.R. Part 261, 
that the Reporter 1J1KI. individual consent to public release of all 
d��i}Jf l the report conci3m g /t�t individual. 

r l, o. c. C t: ___ . · 

For ho/ding compenies Mt reg/stared with the SEC-
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders: 
0 Is Included wl(h the FR Y-6 report

IBI wlll be sent under �eparale cover 
D Is not prepared 

For Federal Reserve Bank Uae Only 

RSSD !D 
C.I. 

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end): 
December 31 ,  201 6 
Monlh / Day / Year 

549300CEZEYSB80M4441 
Reporter'6 Logat Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Cheracler LEI Code) 

Reporter's Name, Street, and Malling Address 

CB Flnanclal Corporation 
legal 'llllo of Holdlna Company 

371 0 Nash St. N. PO Box 8189 
(Malling Address of the Holding company) Slreel / P.O. Box 

Wilson NC 
------

City Slate 

Physical Localion (If dlflerenl from malllnij address) 

Zlp Codo 

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed: 
Michelle F. Joyner Senior Vice President 

lille Name 
252-243-5588
Area Code / Phone Numher f Extension 
252-991 -4522 
Area Code / FAX Numbef 
mjoyner@thecornerstonebanl<.com 
E-mail Address 
www. thecornerstonebank.com 
Address {URL) for lhe Holding Company's web page 

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion O=No 
of this report submission? ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1aYes :IJ 
In accordance with the General Instructions for this report 
(check only one), 

1. a letter Justifying this request Is being provided along 
with the report . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .  D

2. a letter Justlrylng this request has been provided
separately . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . .  D

NOTE: lnrormatlon for which confldontlal treatment Is bolng 
roquesled must be provided separately and labeled 
as "co11fldentlal." 

Pu�llc raporllng burden ror thl• lnformallon collecllon fa csUmated lo very from 1 .3 lo 101 hours por reeponGo, with an average of 5.50 hours per responoc, intludinn limo 10 galhor and 
n1alnloln tlala In the re,iulred rorm and lo review lnslrucl\on• and oomplalo me lnlonnallon conocuon. Send comments reoarding this burden esllmale 01 ar1y Olher aspecl of this collocllan or 
lnforrnaUon, Including suggesllon• for reducing 1111, burden lo: Secr�lary, Boafd or Govefnors of Ule Federal Reserve System, 20lh and C Slreols, NW, Vwshlnaton, DC 20551 , and to the 
Office of Management and B�d9Ql, PapeJWorl< Reducllon Pf<>Ject (7100.0297), Washfngton, DC 20503. 12,2016 

 



Item 2: Organization Chart and Domestic Branch Listing Form FRY-6 

Report Item 2 

CB Financial Corporation 

1 The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its shareholders. 
2A Organlzational Chart 

Cornerstone Bank 
Subsidiary 

lncorporated in North Carolina 
100% Owned by CB Financial Corporation 

3710 Nash Street North 
Vvllson. NC 27896 

CB Financial Corporation Holding 
Company Incorporated in North 

Carolina 
549300CEZEYSB80M4441

3710 Nash street North Wilson, NC 
27896 

28 Cornerstone Bank does not have any domestic brach besides the main office 

CB Financla! Capital Statuto·ry Trust 1 
Subsidiary 

A Connecticut Statutory Trust 

100% Owned by CB Financial Corporation 
371 o Nash street North 

Wilson, NC 27896 

    No LEI#
No LEI#



Results: A list of branches for your deposito!Y institution: CORNERSTONE BANK (ID_RSSD: 2895835). 

This depOSito!Y Institution ls held by CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION (3347564) of WILSON, NC. 

The data a re as of 12/31/2016. Data reflects information that was teceived and processed through 01/10/2017. 

Reconciliation and VeTifkation Steps 

l. In the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below 

2. lf required1 enter the date in the Effective Date colun'ln 

Actions 

OK: If the brand1 information is correct,. enter 'OK' in the Data Action column. 

Char1ge: !f the branch lnformatton is lnc:orrect or lncomplete, revise the data, enter 1Change' in the Oata Action column and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date coh.:imn. 
dose: If a branch listed was sold or dosei:l1 enter'Oose' rn the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column, 

Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depositr;iry in.stitYtion, enter 'Delete' in the Data Air:tion column. 

Add: If a reportable branch is mi~sing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' in the Data Action column and the cpetting or acquisition date in the Effective Date eolumn. 

tf printing tnis llst, you may need to ad Just your page setup in MS Excel. Try wsing la ndsc:ape orientation, page s:ca!ing, and/or legal sized paper. 

Submission Procedure 

When you are finished1 sc:nd a saved copy to your FRB contact, See the detailed instructions on this slte for more informatlon. 

If you a:re e-maittng this to your FRB contact, ptJtyour institution name, city a11d state in the subject line of the e-mail. 

Note: 

To sati.stythe fR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each bran.ch with a Data Action of ChangeJ CioseJ Defetel or Add. 

The FR. Y-10 report may be submltted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application • https:/ /y10online.federa!rese:rve.iov. 

•FDIC UNINUM, Office Number1 and tD_RSSD columns are for reference only. Verificatio11 of these values is not required. 

8"'nch Servi.ce T e Branch 11'.l RSSD* Popular Name I Street Address 
Full Service (Head Office) 2895835 CORNERSTONE BANK 3710 NASH STREET NORTH 

City 

Wll.SCN 

State 
NC 

iZip Code 
27896 

County 

WILSON 
Country I FDIC UNINUM• I Office Number• Head Office 
UNITED STATES 77673 0 CORNERSTONE BANK 

Head Office ID_ RSSD" Comments 
2895835 



Report Item 3: Shareholders Form FR Y-6 
CB Financial Corporation 
FYE December 31, 2016 

Current shareholders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote FYE December 31, 2016 
(1)(a) (1)(b) (1)(c) 
Name & Address Country of Citizenship or Incorporation Number and Percentage of each Class of 
(City, State, Country) Voting Securities 

Gregory A. Turnage (Wilson, NC, US) US 
S. Christopher Williford (Wilson, NC, US) US 
Mark A. Holmes (Wilson, NC, US) US 
Howard T. Sanders (Elizabeth City, NC, US) US 

5,497,116 
3,949,303 
4,700,000 
4,700,000 

Report Item 3.2 List of individuals/companies that held 5% or more voting securities during the year but not at the end of the year 

NONE 

11.56% 
8.31% 
9.89% 
9.89% 



Report Item 4: Insiders 

I 2 f.l)(a) 
Namo & Address 

(Cl!v. Sb>to, Count,y) Prlnc,oal Ocelio.:1tion if olhcr ltlnn hold1nn COC'l'lb:illV id.In PO$ili011 wdh h,.fA/nn cnma..'lll'W 

Gr\'!Qo,yA. Turnage Wa1sonf NC t'uQhwar Contractor Director 

JU<ly J.., MWIIM(I W)lsoh, NC Conlntc:or & Rental Properties Assistant Secretary 

D:l'llfd W, Wood•rd Wilson. NC l.awy<)r Se< ... tary 

John Charles Anlhony, Jr , Wilson CPA Treasurer 
NC 
ROl>O.rt E Klrlelan<I m. Wilson NC AutoPoos Director 

W. CO.tJ1torPa:non Ill \Mbon NC W;:wrehCHJSin:g Ol�or 

s. CMstopl,e, W.llrord, Wilson NC Mechanical Contracting Director 

Mart A. Holmes. Wilson NC -•nt, CEO, al)d Cwectorol Comorslooe Bonk President.\ CEO ond Dj,edof 

tJow;:uG T Sanders

Elizabeth City, NC 

Wholesale Industrial Equipmenl and Supplies N/A 

Form FR Y-6 

CB Financial Corporation 

FYE December 31, 2016 

(3)(1>) (3)C) 

iltlo POSl.tio.n with s.ubsldlarie!. Tffle POS;tlOfl .....tth othllf butJnesses 

N/A p,�anl nnd ownOf, PLT ConsUur:1>01\, 
Inc (50%), PLT Concrete Services, Inc (50%), and 
PLT Utilities, Inc (33%); Owner, T & H. Electric, 
Inc (50%); Member, GRECO Development 
Co.(50%), LCC, Pinecrest Development 
Co.(33%), LLC, Pinecrest Holdings Co , LLC 
(30%), Partner TAG Development (50%); Partner, 
TBPCC, LLC (25%); Pinecrest Farm Holdings LLC 
(33%) 

NIA Owrww�.anago,. JAM Proponies, JMA Re-nhlts, 
and JAM Investments (100%) 

N/A Lllw P.lrt.ner, Coflnor, 8'.lnn, Rooorscn & 
Woodard. P.L L.C (33%> 

NIA Padnor, Anl/JQny. Mooto � Tobb, PA (CPAs) 
(33%) 

N/A Owner/Manager, Barnes Motor & Parts Co., Inc 
Ir.Ml.I 

NIA P1�0Ml. Paxton Mini SIO�H,. IMC:, (50%} and 
PBS Storage, Inc (50%); Manager, Paxton 
Bonded Storages, Inc (50%); Partner, GRECO 
Development Co , LLC (50%), Pinecrest 
Development Co , LLC (33%) and Pinecrest 
Holdings Co., LLC (30%); Partner, TBPCC, LLC 
12$'11,l: Pince.,; f•rm Hold'"'"' llC (33lU 

NIA 
Pr'l!Siim,t Southam Pl..:- eom--. tne 12$%\ 

Pr..-.ldonl 6 CEO and ()lntetor NIA 

NA President, CEO, and Owner or Sanders Company 
in Elizabeth City, NC (100%) 

(4)(3) (4)(b) C•l•l 

If,, c,f votrnn •res wm, ho1
""'-' comonnv " of votlnn stuuM wHt, sub!kl"i:i� All Pov:,tolv Hllld COmnnnies 

11.56% OS. PresJdc-r,1 and owner�PLI Ool"lslJudior\. lnc.(50%), 
PLT Concrete Services, Inc (50%) and GETSCO 
(25%); Owner. T & H Electric, Inc (33%); 
Member, GRECO Development Co (50%), LCC, 
Pinecrest Development Co,(33%), LLC, Pinecrest 
Holdings Co , LLC {30%), Partner TAG 
Development (50%); Partner.Pinecrest Farm 
Holdings LLC (33%) 

059% 0% OWnof/t..-!anaget. JAM Ptc,penies.. JAM Renma, 
and JAM Investments (100%) 

O.IOll 0� Law Partner, Connor, Bunn, Rogerson & 
Woodard, P L  L,C (33%) 

0.08'11 O'i< Paonor,An1nony.Moor06 Tabb,P.A (CPAs) 
(3:ll'o) 

0.41)11 0% OwnoriMenag:er, S�n,o, li.iQll;)f 6 P�rl:1 Co , Inc 
150!.l 

1.79'11. 0% Pr...Cont, Pmon Mini SIOrag .. , !nc. (60'.&.) and 
PBS Storage, Inc (50%); Manager, Paxton 
Bonded Storages, Inc (50%); Partner, GRECO 
Development Co , LLC (50%), Pinecrest 
Development Co , LLC (33%) and Pinecrest 
Halcllnga Co., LLC (3�): Partner. TBPCC, LLC 
(25%1: Pino<reotFarm Ho"'-UC 133%1 

"'" Ol'o 

Presidc-nt. southern Pi"'"" Comoan.v. me 125%) 
ga� 0% NIA 

U9% 0'1< President, CEO, and Owner of Sanders Company 
In Elizltbolh Ci>/. NC 1100'-'l 
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Financial 
Corporation 

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS, AND FRIENDS: 

•cornerstoJ1e 
1111 'jg>~ 

We are pleased to report that 2016 was another year of growth and achievement for CB Financial 
Corporation (aCB11 or the "Company"), the holding company for Cornerstone Bank (11cornerstone" or the 
"Bank"). 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, CB reported net income of $2.5 mllllon compared to net income of 
$6011000 for the year ended December 31, 2015. The 2016 result was positively impacted by the reversal of 
CB's defe1-red tax asset ("DTA") valuation allowance that provided a one-time tax benefit of approximately 
$2.0 mlllion. With these results, CB is reporting its third consecutive year of profitable operations. 

As of December 31 1 20161 CB reported total assets of $109.9 million, total loans of $72.0 milllon and total 
deposits of $91.1 million, Assets, loans and deposits increased 5%1 4% and 2%1 respectively, compared to 
totals reported at year-end December 311 2015, The Company continues to see positive core earnings, 
improved asset quality and solid loan and deposit growth. This bodes well for the future as we focus on 
these critical measures of strong performance. 

As a community bank headquartered in Wilson, lt is our stated goal to serve the community banking needs 
of Individuals and businesses in the City of Wilson, Wilson County and the surrounding area. It was with 
that fn mind Cornerstone Introduced two new relationship accounts, CashBack Checking and Interest 
Rewards Checking, last summer. These accounts have been well~received and we will build on their success 
in 2017. 

Our Annual Meeting of shareholders will be held on Tuesday, June 20, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. at the Cornerstone 
Bank Operations Center, 3105 Nash Street N., Wilson, North Carolina. Please join us to hear more about our 
results to-date and additional plans for 2017. 

If you currently bank with us, thank you. If you do not bank with us yet, we hope you will give us the 
opportunity to meet your banking needs. Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Mark A. Holmes 
President and CEO 

John C. Anthony 
Chairman of the Board 

1 



:: ... Cherry BekaertlLP .., 
CPAs & Ar/visors 

Report of Independent Auditor 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
CB Financial Corporation and Subsidiary 
Wilson, North Carolina 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CB Financial Corporation and 
Subsidiary (collectively the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 
2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive Income, changes in 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Finandal Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparatfon and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsil:>ility is to express an opinion on these consolldated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on tile effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolldated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolldated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of CB Financial Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Cieeu;-~ked CL/? 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
March 21, 2017 

2 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015 
ASSETS 
Cash and due from banks $ 3,380,729 $ 2,878,738 
Interest-earning deposits in banks 4,275,232 3,846,530 

Total cash and cash equivalents 7,655,961 6,725,268 

Repurchase agreements 2,487,804 
Certiflcates of deposits 1,060,000 1,550,000 
Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value 16,934,531 20,837,610 

Loans 71,959,359 68,715,983 
Allowance for loan losses (975,873) (1,122,916) 

Net loans 70,983.486 67,593,067 

Accrued interest receivable 380,546 326,624 
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stock, at cost 307,400 398,300 
Premises and equipment, net 2,229,671 2,323,738 
Banl<-owned life insurance 4,015,273 3,901,577 
Real estate owned 1,396,572 1,746,243 
Deferred tax assets, net 2,074,322 
Other assets 355,495 354, 114 

Total Assats $ 109,881,061 $ 105,756,541 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Deposits: 

Demand $ 17,213,413 $ 12,779,164 
Savings 3,464,495 3,490,920 
Money market and NOW 37,982,612 35,954,683 
Time 33,432,556 38,314,416 

Total deposits 92,093,076 90,539,183 

Borrowings 5,000,000 5,000,000 
Subordinated debt 5,155,000 5,155,000 
Accrued interest payable 21,501 25,126 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 110,979 179,421 

Total Liabilities 102,380,556 100,898,730 

Stockholders' Equity: 
Common stock, no par value, 80,000,000 shares authorized; 

47,544,924 shares issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015. 

Additional paid"in capital 18,233,024 18,233,024 
Accumulated deficit (10,588,936) (13, 122,914) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {1431583) ~252,299} 

Total Stockholders' Equity 7,500,505 4,857,811 
Total Liabllltles and Stockholders' Equity $ 109,881,061 $ 105,756,541 

Ths accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 3 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 311 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015 
Interest Income: 

Loans $ 3,239,043 $ 3,078,160 
Investment securities - taxable 333,314 507,324 
Interest - earning deposits in banks 53,662 46,732 
Other interest and dividends 76,819 67,171 

Total Interest Income 3,702,838 3,699,387 

Interest Expense: 
Money market, NOW, and savings deposits 41,147 39,944 
Time deposits 291,636 323,942 
Short-term borrowings 114,387 147,602 
Long-term borrowings 133,326 132,527 

Total Interest Expense 580,496 644,015 

Net Interest income 3,122,342 3,055,372 

Recovery of loan losses {275,000~ 

Net interest income after recovery of loan losses 3,122,342 3,330,372 

Non-interest Income: 
Service charges on deposit accounts 147,356 161,800 
Mortgage operations 90,988 48,372 
Gain on sale of investment securities available-for-sale 126,188 37,729 
Income from bank-owned life Insurance 113,696 312,671 
Other 110,593 141,566 

Total Non.interest Income 588,821 702,138 

Non-interest Expense: 
Salaries and employee benefits 1,650,320 1,705,303 
Occupancy and equipment 226,134 241,978 
Data processing expenses 469,961 393,513 
Loss on sale and write down of real estate owned 40,414 239,183 
Other 768,880 851,619 

Total Non-interest Expense 3,155,709 3,431,596 

Income before income taxes 555,454 600,914 
Income tax benefit ~1.978,524} 

Net income allocable to common stockholders $ 2,533,978 $ 600,914 

Net income per common share: 
Basic $ 0.05 $ 0.02 
Diluted 0.05 0.02 

Weighted average common share outstanding: 
Basic 47,544,924 28,452,048 
Diluted 47,544,924 34,186,112 

The accompanying notes to the consoljdated financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 4 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015 
Netmcome $ 2,533,978 $ 600,914 

Other comprehensive income {loss): 
Changes in unrealized losses on securities available 

for sale, including income tax benefit of $83,032 durlng 2016, 
and $0 for 2015 

Reclassification of realized gains during the year 

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 

Comprehensive income $ 

234,904 (202,194) 

~126, 188~ (37,729~ 

108,716 (239,923) 

2,642,694 $ 360,991 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 5 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016AND 2015 

l\ccumutaled 

Other 

Commun Prd•rr•d Preferred Preferred Paid· In A«umulatod comprehendve 

Stock stock A Stock P Stocke caeHol D•flcU !Lou) !Monte Total 

llolQ1tce, oacember 31, 2014 s s 1,928,429 s 630,00~ $ 4,Q~0.000 ~ B,914,670 $ (13,723,828) $ (12,376} 1,(;77,100 

Nellncoone 600,914 600,914 

Othor comprehenslvo 10s• (239,923) {239,923] 

Convoralon of preferred lo common (1,920,429) (630,005) (4,040,000) 6,498,434 

Slock-b•••d componsntion (6,833) (6,&33) 

lssuan(!e or common stouk: 2,B26,55:l 2,625,553 

B•l~nco, Oocernber 31, 2015 18,233,024 (13,122,914) (262,299) 4,667,811 

Nol Income ?.,533,976 2,633,978 

01her comprehensive lrioomo 108,716 108,116 

B•fonco, December 31, 2018 s $ $ 1C,?.3M24 $ 110,G00,93GJ $ (W,6811) 7,600,.G05 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial st~temants are an integral part of these statements. 6 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income $ 2,533,978 $ 600,914 
Adjustments to reconcile net income lo 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Deferred 1ax benent (1,991,289) 
Depreciation and amortization 123,043 130,699 
Proceeds from disposal of bank premises and equipment 200 
Amortlza11on and accretion of lnvestmen1 

securities available-for-sale, net 43,735 128,115 
Stock based compensation (5,833) 
Realized gain on Investment securities available-for-sale (126, 188) (37,729) 
Loss on sale of ~al estate owned 40,414 127,087 
Write down of real esta1e owned 112,096 
Recovery of loan losses (275,000) 
Earnings on bank-owned life Insurance {113,696) (312,671) 
Deferred loan income (21,617) (13,433) 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accrued interest receivable (53,922) 6,719 
Other assets (1,381) 318,519 
Accrued interest payable (3,625) (556,920) 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ~68,442) (117,656) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 361,010 105, 107 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investment securities, available-for-sale (10,570,464) (20,513,976) 
Sales of Investment securities, available-for-sale 14,120,935 24,099,257 
Proceeds from maturities and calls of investments securities available-for-sale 460,744 2,271,956 
Purchases of repurchase agreements (2,4137,804) 
Proceeds from maturities of certificates of deposit 490,000 
Purchases of certificates of deposit (1,060,000) 
Proceeds from bank-owned life insurance benefit 302,929 
Proceeds from sale of raal estate owned 309,257 1,326,679 
Net increase In loans (3,368,802) (3, 086, 777) 
Proceeds from sales of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 90,900 113,300 
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (26,976) (11,690) 

Net cash (provided by) used in Investing activities (984,210) 3,441,678 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Net Increase {decrease) in deposits 1,553,893 (7 ,032,558) 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of cost 2,825,553 
Net paymen1s on FHLB advances ~2,000,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,553,893 (6,207,005) 

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 930,693 (2,660,220) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 6,725,268 9,385,488 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 7,655,961 $ 6,725,268 

supplemental disclosure of cash flow inform01tton: 
Interest paid $ 584,121 $ 1,200,935 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions: 
Change in fair value of investment 

securitiea avallable-for-sale, net $ 25,684 $ (239,923~ 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of. these statements. 7 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 1-0rganizatlon and operations 

Cornerstone Bank (the "Bank") was incorporated on March 14, 2000, and began banking operations on 
March 15, 2000. The Bank ls engaged In general commercial and retaH banking in eastern North Carolina, 
principally in Wilson County, and operates under the banking laws of North Carolina and the rules and 
regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks. The 
Bank undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities. 

In June 2005, the stockholders of the Bank approved an Agreement and Plan of Reorganization pursuant to 
which the Bank became a wholly-owned banking subsidiary of CB Financial Corporation (the "Company"), a 
North Carolina corporation formed as a holding company for the Bank. At the closing of the holding company 
reorganization (the "Reorganization"), one share of the Company's no par value common stock was exchanged 
for each of the outstanding shares of the Bank's $5.00 par value common stock. The Company currently has no 
operations and conducts no bt1slness on its own other than its ownership of the Bank and the common shares of 
CB Financial Capital Trust I, a Connecticut statutory trust to facilitate the issuance of $5 million of trust preferred 
securities. 

In May 2015, the stockholders approved various amendments to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, that 
resulted in all of the Company's issued and outstanding shares of preferred stock (Series A, B, and C) being 
converted and reclassified into common stock, effective May 29, 2015. 

In June 2015, the Company began a Private Placement Common Stock Offering (the "Private Placement") with 
certain individual accredited investors. Under the terms of the Private Placement, the Company established a 
maximum offering of 35,000,000 shares of no par value common stock at a price of $0.10 per share. Upon 
completion, the Company placed 28,850,000 shares of common stock at the offering price of $0.10 per share as 
of June 29, 2015. There were no such transactions for the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Note 2-Summary of significant accounting policies 

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CB Financial 
Corporation and Cornerstone Bank. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates - The preparatton of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the consolidated financial statements and (ii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are 
particularly susceptible to significant change relate to management's determination of the allowance for loan 
losses, the valuation of real estate owned, realization of net deferred tax assets, and the fair value of financial 
instruments. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purpose of prese11tation In the consolidated statements of cash flows, 
cash and cash equivalents are defined as those amounts included in the consolldated balance sheet captions 
"Cash and due from banks," and "Interest-earning deposits in banks" with maturities fewer than 90 days. Net 
cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactlons and time deposits in other banks. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 2-Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale - Investment securities available-for-sale are reported at fair value and 
consist of debt instruments that are not classified as either trading securities or as held-to-maturity securities. 
Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of deferred income tax, on available-for-sale securities are reported as 
a net amot1nt in accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on the sale of investment 
securities available-for-sale are determined using the specific-identification method. Declines in the fair value of 
individual investment securities available-for-sale below their cost that are determined to be other than 
temporary would result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. Such write-downs would be 
Included in earnings as realized losses. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the 
interest method over the period to maturity. 

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Premiums and discounts on securities 
are amortized on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments, except for mortgage-backed 
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gains and losses on sales are recorded on a trade-date basis 
and determined using the specific identification method. 

Management evaluates securities other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") on at least a quarterly basis, and 
more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. For securities in an 
unrealized loss position, management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized lass, and the financial 
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer. Management also assesses whether it intends to sell or it is 
more likely than not that it will be required to sell a security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its 
amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the entire difference 
between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment through earnings. For debt securities that 
do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment is split into two components as follows: 
1) OTTI related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the income statement, and 2) OTTI related to other 
factors, which Is recognized In other comprehensive income. The credit loss is defined as lhe difference 
between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis. For equity 
securities, the entire amount of impairment is recognized through earnings. 

Loans - Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable fUture or until maturity are 
reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for any charge-offs. the allowance for loan losses, and 
any deferred fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. 
Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the 
yield of the related loan. The accrual of Interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in management's 
opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. When interest accrual is 
discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the 
extent cash payments are received. 

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have 
occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the 
allowance when management believes the un-collectabllity of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon 
management's periodic review of the collectabllity of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and 
volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of 
any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions, and environmental factors. This evaluation is 
inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information 
becomes available. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 2-Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and eve.nts, it is probable that the Bank will 
be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms 
of the Joan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining Impairment include payment status 
and other circumstances impacting the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when 
due. Loans that experience Insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as 
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays anq payment shortfalls on a case-by­
case basis, taking into consideration all of lhe circumstances surrounding !he loan and the borrower, Including 
the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the 
shortfall in relation lo the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for 
commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the 
loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is 
collateral dependent. 

The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components. The specific component relates to 
loans that are classified as impaired, for which an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or 
corlateral value or observable market price) of the loan is lower than its carrying value. The general component 
covers non-impaired loans and is based on historfcaJ loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. Historical 
losses are categorized into risk-similar loan pools and a loss ratio factor Is applied to each group's loan 
balances to determine the allocatlon. 

An unallocated component ls maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of 
probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent In the 
underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio. 

Qualitative and envfronmental factors include external risk factors that management believes affect the overall 
lending environment of the Company. Environmental factors that management of the Company routinely 
analyze include levels and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans, levels, and trends in charge-offs and 
recoveries, trends in volume and terms of loans, effects of changes in risl< management and underwriting 
practices, experience, ability, and depth of lending management and staff, national and local economic trends 
and conditions, banking industry conditions, and the effect of changes in credit concentrations. 

Mortgage Operations - The Bank originates single family, residential first mortgage loans on a presold basis. 
The Bank recognizes certain origination and service release fees upon the sale, which are Included in non­
interest income on the statements of operations under the caption "Mortgage operations." 

Premises and Equipment - Land is carried at cost. The Company's premises and equipment are stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives are 35 years for buildings, 3 to 15 years for furniture, fixtures, and 
equipment, and 2 to 5 years for computers and related equipment. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged 
to operations as incurred and additions and improvements to premises and equipment are capltalfzed. Upon 
sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gains 
or losses are reflected in current operations. 

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta Stock and Investments Accounted for Under t/Je Cost Method ~ As a 
requirement for membership, the Company invests in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB"), 
which is carried at cost, classlfled as a restricted security, and perlodlcally evaluated for Impairment based on 
ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and stock dividends are reported as Income. Because of the 
redemption provisions of the FHLB, the Company estimated lhat fair value equals cost and that this Investment 
was not Impaired at December 31, 2016 or 2015. 

10 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 2-Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Occasionally, the Company Invests in nonmarketable equity securities which are accounted for under the cost 
method. These investments are carried at cost unless a determination has been made that they are impaired. 
During 2016 and 2015, no write downs were necessary. These investments are included in other assets in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Real Estate Owned - Real estate acquired through, or In lieu of, loan foreclosure Is lnltlally recorded at fair value 
less estimated costs to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing a new cost basis. Principal and interest losses 
existing at the time of acquisition of such assets are charged against the allowance for loan losses and interest 
income, respectively. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations of the property are periodically performed by 
management and the real estate is carried at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated cost to sell. 
Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in expenses on 
real estate owned. 

Income Taxes - Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the tax bases of assets and liabflities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for operating loss carry-forwards. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if 
it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be realized. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank had 
recorded valuation allowances against all of its net deferred tax assets. Management has determined that it is 
more likely than not that deferred tax assets will be realizable up to the recorded value. As a result, 
management has reduced its valuation allowance from December 31, 2015 of $5,223,662 down to $96,425, for 
the year ended December 31, 2016. 

It is the Bank's policy to evaluate uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had 
no uncertain tax positions requiring disclosure or recognition. 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) - Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to all 
components (revenues, expenses, gains, and losses) of comprehensive income (loss) that are excluded from 
net income. The Company's only component of other comprehensive income is unrealized gains and losses on 
investment securities avallable~for-sale. 

Advertising Costs - Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $53,218 and 
$46,384 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

Bank Owned Life fnsurance ("BOLi") - The Bank has invested In cash value life insurance policies to fund a 
portion of the deferred compensation plan. The investment in the life insurance contracts is reported as an 
asset at the amount that could be realized under the insurance contracts at the balance sheet date. 

Per Share Results -As discussed in Note 1, all shares of Series A, B, and C Preferred Stock were reclassified 
and converted into shares of common stock during June 2015. Prior to the conversion, Series A and Series B 
Preferred Stockholders were entitled to vote only as required by law, or upon any merger or acquisition of all or 
substantially all of the capital stock or assets of the Company. Series A Preferred Stockholders, except with 
respect to the Series B Preferred Dividend, were entitled to a preference in the distribution of dividends so that 
the holders of Series A shall receive dividends prior to the holders of common stock and Series B Preferred 
Stock. Series C Preferred Stockholders had liquidation preference of $2. 50 and a non-cumulative dividend of 
5% per annum. No preferred dividends were declared in 2016 or 2015. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 2-Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common 
shares that would have been outstanding if dtlutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any 
adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be 
issued by the Company relate to outstanding stock options and Preferred Stock, and are determined using the 
treasury stock method. All potentially dilutive shares were converted to common shares as of December 31, 
2015. No additional dilutive shares were issued during the year ended December 31, 2016. 

The basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding are as follows: 

Net income available to common shareholders 

Weighted average number of common shares - basic 
Effect of dilutive convertible preferred shares, Series A 
Effect of dilutive convertible preferred shares, Series B 
Effect of dilutive convertible preferred shares, Series C 
Weighted average number of common shares - dilutive 

Basic earnings per common share 
Diluted earnings per common share 

Note 3-Restrictions on cash 

2016 
$ 2,533,978 

$ 

47,544,924 

47,544,924 

0.05 
D.05 

$ 

$ 

2015 
600,914 

26,452,048 
90,196 
24,984 

7,618,884 
34,186,112 . 

0.02 
0.02 

The Bank is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 
2016 and 2015, these reserve balances amounted to $225,000 and $200,000, respectively. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 4-fnvestment securities available-for-sale 

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, are as 
follows : 

December 31, 2016 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains Losses Value 

Investment securities available-for-sale: 
Government sponsored enterprises $ 8,642,206 $ 16, 158 $ (97,076) $ 8,561,288 
Municipal securities 3, 138,352 2,343 (7 ,809) 3,132,886 
Mortgage"backed securities 5,380,588 (140,231) 5,240,357 

$ 17,161,146 $ 18,501 $ J 245,116) $ 16,934,531 

December 31, 2015 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains Losses Value 

Investment securities available-for-sale: 
Government sponsored enterprises $ 8,799,690 $ 9,734 $ (92, 153) $ 8,717,271 
Municipal securities 1,247,425 200 (26,745) 1,220,880 
Mortgage-backed securities 11,042,794 14,993 (158,328) 10,899,459 

$ 21,089,909 $ 24,927 $ (277,226) $ 20,837,61 0 

Securities with a carrying value of $3.9 million and $6.3 million at December 31 , 2016 and 2015, respectively, 
were pledged to secure borrowings. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 4-lnvestment securities available-for-sale (continued) 

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's investment securities 
with unrealized losses that are deemed to be temporartly impaired aggregated by investment category and 
length of time that individual sacurilies have been in a continuous, unrealized loss position at December 31, 
2016 and 2015. 

[)ecemller 31, 2016 
Less Tnan 12 Months 12 Months or More Total 
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair unrealized 

Volue Losses Value Losses Value Losses 
Investment securities available~for-sale: 

Government sponsored enfsrprlses $ 5,932,139 $ 87,651 $ 1,143,270 $ 9,425 $ 7,075,409 $ 97,076 
Municipal 5ecuri11es 2,654,897 7,809 2,654,897 7,809 
Mortgage-backed securities 2,373,514 82,623 2,666,044 57,408 5,240,356 140,231 

Total temporarily Impaired 
available-for-sale securities $ 10,960,!i50 $ 178,283 $ 4,010,114 $ 66,833 $ 14,970,6611 '$ 245,116 

December 31, 2015 
Less Than 12 Months :12 Months or Mora Toi-al 
Fair Unrealized Fair U11reatlied Fair Unrealized 

Value Losses Value Losses Value losses 
lnveslmenl securllles available-for-sale: 

Government sponsored enterprises $ 6,466,359 $ 72,304 $ 728,363 $ 19,849 $ 7,196,722 $ 92,153 
Municipal securities 1, 160,680 26,745 1,160,680 26,745 
Mortgage-backed securilies 9,032,959 158,328 9,032,959 168,328 

T olal temporarily Impaired 
available-for-sale securllles $ 16,661,998 $ 257,377 $ 728,363 $ 19,849 $ 17,390,361 $ 277,226 

As of December 31·. 2016 there was one taxable municipal security and two mo1tgage-backed securities that 
have been in a continuous, unrealized loss position for more than twelve months. The unrealized losses on the 
Company's investment securities were caused by various reasons, but the Company feels !hat no material 
impairment of value is due to deteriorating financial condition of the issuers. The contractual terms of those 
Investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the 
investment. The Company does not intend to sell, and it is not more likely tha11 not that the Company will be 
required lo sell, these Investment securities bGfore the anticipated recovery of the amortized cost basis. As a 
result, the Company did not consider those investments to be olher-thah-temporarlly Impaired at December 31, 
2016 and 2015. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 4-lnvestment securities available-for-sale (continued) 

The amortized cost and fair value of the Company's Investment securities available-for-sale at December 31, 2016, 
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because 
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Securities available-for-sale: 
Due in less than one year 
Due in one to five years 
Due in five to ten years 
Due after ten years 

Total 

Amortized Fair 
Cost Value 

$ 109,889 
2, 161,381 

14,414,230 
475,646 

$ 17,161 ,146 

$ 107,108 
2,135,628 

14,213,806 
477,989 

$ 16,934,531 

For purposes of the maturity table, mortgage-backed securities, which are not due at a single maturity date, have 
been allocated over maturity groupings based on the weighted-average contractual maturities of underlying 
collateral. The mortgage-backed securities may mature earlier than their weighted-average con1ractual maturities 
because of principal prepayments. Proceeds from the sale of investment securities available-for-sale during 2016 
and 2015 of $14, 120,935 and $24,099,257, generated gross realized gains of $145,849 and $208,308, 
respectively, and gross realized losses for 2016 and 2015 of $19,661 and $170,579, respectively. 

Note 5-Federal Home Loan Bank Atlanta Stock 

As of December 31, 2016, the Bank had 3,074 shares of $100 par value capital stock totaling $307,400 in FHLB 
stock. The Bank had 3,983 shares of $100 par value capital stock totaling $398,300 in FHLB stock as of 
December 31, 2015. In order to borrow funds from the FHLB, the Bank must maintain an investment in FHLB's 
activity-based stock equal to $212,500 and $297,500 respectively, and an investment in FHLB's membership 
based stock equal to $94,900 and $100,800, respectively, for the years ended December31, 2016 and 2015. 
Based on redemption provisions of FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost. 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses 

Following is a summary of loans at December 31 : 

Commercial and agriculture 
Construction and development 
Farmland 
1-4 resldentlal mortgage 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 

Total loans 
Less allowance for loan losses 

Net loans 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 
(Dollars ih thousands) 

28,468 $ 31,780 
5,520 4,694 
6,303 1,764 

21,024 22,945 
9,250 5,358 
1,394 2,175 

71,959 68,716 
(976) (i, 123} 

70,983 $ 67,593 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses {continued} 

Loans are primarily made in Wilson County, North Carolina. Real estate loans can be affected by the condition 
of the local real estate market. Commercial and Installment loans can be affected by local economic conditions. 

The Company has had loan transactions with its directors and executive officers. Such loans were made in the 
ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms and collateral as those ror comparable 
transactions prevaillng al the time. Such loans did not involve more than the normal rlsk of collectabillty or 
present other unfavorable features. A summary of related-party loan transactions is as follows (in thousands): 

2016 2015 
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,221 $ 2,511 
Borrowings 136 271 
Repayments (1,702} (561) 

Balance, end of year $ 655 $ 2,221 

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed to be sufficient to 
provide for estimated loan losses based on evaluating known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The 
allowance is provided based upon management's comprehensive analysts of the pertinent factors underlying the 
quality of the loan portfolio. These factors Include changes In the amount and composition of the loan portfolio, 
delinquency levels, actual loss experience, current economic conditions, and detailed analysis of individual 
loans for which the full collectability may not be assured. The detailed analysis includes methods to estimate the 
fair value of loan collateral and the exlstence of potential alternative sources of repayment. The allowance 
consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are deemed 
impaired. For such loans thal are classified as Impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash 
flows (or collateraJ value or observable market prir.e) of the impaired loan is lower than !he recorded value of 
that loan. The general component covers the remaining. loan portfolio not evaluated individually for Impairment, 
and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. The appropriateness of the allowance 
for loan losses on loans is estimated based upon these factors and trends fdentlfied by management at the time 
financial statements are prepared. 

A provision for loan losses Is charged against operations and is added lo the allowance for loan losses based on 
quarterly comprehensive analyses of the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses is allocated to certain loan 
categories based on the relatlve risk cf)aracterisllcs, asset classifications, and actual loss experience of the loan 
portfolio. While management has allocated the allowance for loan losses to various loan portfolio segments, the 
allowance ls general in nature and is available for the loan portfolio in Its entirety. 

16 



CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued) 

The following table presents activity In the allowance by loan category and information on the loans evaluated 
individually for impairment and collectively evaluated for impairment as of December 31 (in thousands): 

Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Loans 
Commercial Construction 1-4 

and Multlfomlly and Resldentlal Consumer 
Agricultural Resident la I Development Farmland Mortgage and Other Total 

Docembor 3j, 20j 6 
Allowance for loan losses: 
Beginning Balance $ 533 $ 54 $ 83 $ 2 $ 346 $ 105 $ 1,123 
Charge-offs (232) (23) (9) (264) 
Recoveries 81 10 19 7 117 
Ending Balance $ 382 $ 64 $ 83 $ 2 $ 342 $ 103 $ 976 
Ending Balance; individually : =~ 

evaluated for impairment $ $ $ $ $ 6 $ $ 6 
Ending Balance: colleclively 

evaluated for impairment $ 382 $ 64 $ 83 $ 2 $ 336 $ 103 $ 970 

Loans outstanding: 
Ending Balance $ 28,466 $ 9,250 $ 5,520 $ 6,303 $ 21,024 $ 1,394 $ 71,959 
Ending Balance: lndlvldlially ·™™' It::= 

evaluated for Impairment $ 1,758 $ $ 94 $ $ 786 $ 4 $ 2,642 
Ending Balanoo: collectively 

evaluated for Impairment $ 26,710 $ 9,2~0 $ 5,426 $ 6,303 $ 20,238 $ 1,390 $ 69,31"1 = 
Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment In Loans 

Commercial Construction f.4 
and Multifamily .and Residential consumer 

Agricultural Resldentlal Development Farmla.nd Mortcage and Other Total 
December 31 1 201li 
Allowance for loan losses: 
Beginning Balance $ 739 $ 106 $ 183 $ 426 $ 62 $ 54 $ 1,570 
Charge-offs (168) (66) (61) (259) (10) (564) 
Recoveries 254 16 61 57 4 392 
(Recovery of} provision for 

loan losses -- (292) ~2) (100) (424) 486 57 (275~ 
Ending Balance $ 533 $ 54 $ 83 $ 2 $ 346 $ 105 $ 1,123 
Ending Balance: lndlvldually 

evaluated for impairment $ 81 $ $ 5 $ $ 4 $ $ 90 
Ending Balance: collectlvely 

evaluated for impairment $ 452 $ 54 $ 78 $ 2 $ 342 $ 105 $ 1,033 
-==="'====' 

Loans outstanding: 
Ending Salance $ 31,780 $ 5,358 $ 4,694 s 1,764 $ 22,946 $ 2,175 $ 68,716 
Ending Balance: Individually 

evaluated for impairment $ 2,343 $ $ 99 $ $ 1,009 $ 11 $ 3,462 
Ending Balance: collectrvely 

evaluated for impairment $ 29,437 $ 5,358 $ 4,595 $ 1,764 $ 21,936 $ 2;164 $ 65,254 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued) 

Management closely monitors the quality of the loan portfolio and has established a loan review process 
designed to help grade the quality of the Bank's loan portfolio. The Bank's loan ratings coincide with the 
"Substandard," "Doubtful," and "Loss" classifications used by federal regulators in tl1eir examination of financial 
institutions. Generally, an asset is considered Substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net 
worth and paying capacity of the obligors and/or the collateral pledged. Substandard assets include those 
characterized by the distinct possibility that the insured financial institution will sustain some loss if the 
deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified as Doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in assets 
classified Substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation 
in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, highly questionable, and Improbable. Assets classified as Loss are 
those considered uncollectible, and of such little value that its continuance on the books is not warranted. 
Assets that do not currently expose the insured financial institutions to sufficient risk to warrant classification in 
one of the aforementioned categories but otherwise possess weaknesses are designated "Speclal Mention." 
These loans represent borrowers with declining earnings, strained cash flow, Increasing leverage, and/or 
weakening market fundamentals that indicate above average risk. 

The following table lists the Joan grades utilized by the Bani< and the corresponding total of outstanding loans in 
each category as of December 31 (in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 
Commercial and agriculture 
Construction and development 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 
Multifamily residential 
Consumer and other 

Total 

December 31, 2015 
Cornmercfal and agriculture 
Construction and development 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 
Multifamily residential 
Consumer and other 

Total 

Pass 

$ 24,333 
5.426 
6,171 

20,424 
9,250 
1,368 

$ 66,972 

Pass 
$ 26,248 

4,496 
1,764 

20,670 
5,353 
2,161 

$ 60,692 

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grades 
Loan Grades 

Doubtful 
Special and 

Mention Substandard Loss Total 
$ 2,986 $ 1,149 $ $ 28,468 

94 5,520 
132 6,303 
600 21,024 

9,250 
26 1,394 

$ 3,838 $ 1,149 $ $ 71,959 

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grades 
Loan Grades 

D~ubtful 
Special and 

Mention Substandard Loss Total 
$ 3,290 $ 2,242 $ $ 31,780 

198 4,694 
1,764 

1,639 636 22,945 
5 5,358 

14 2,175 

$ 5,146 $ 2,878 $ $ 68,716 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued) 

Loans may be placed in nonacorual status when, in management's opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet 
payments as they become due. Whan interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. 
Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received. Payments received are 
first applied to principal, and any remaining funds are then applied to interest. Loans are removed from nonaccrual 
status when they are deemed a loss and charged to the allowance, transferred to foreclosed assets, or returned to 
accrual status based upon performance consistent with the original terms of the loan or a subsequent restructuring 
thereof. 

The following table presents an age analysis of nonaccrual and past due loans by category as of December 31 (in 
thousands): 

Analysis of Past Due and Jllonaccrual Loans 
90 Days or 90+ Days 

30·89 Days More Total Past Total Past Due and Non accrual 
December 31, 2.016 Past Due Past Due Due Current Loans Still Accruing Loans 
Commercial and agriculture $ 42 $ 39 $ 81 $ 28,387 $ 28,468 $ $ 39 
Conslruction and development 5,520 5,520 
Farmland 6,303 6,303 
1-4 Residential mortgage 1,051 365 1,416 19,608 21,024 365 
Multifamily 9,250 9,250 
Consumer and olher 16 16 1,378 1,394 

Total $ 1,109 $ 404 $ 1,513 $ 70,446 $ 71,959 $ $ 404 

Analysis of Past Due and Nonaccrua( Loans 
90 Days or 90+ Days 

30·89 Days More Total Past 'fotal Past Due and Nonaccroal 
Ol!cember 31, 2015 Past Due Past Oue Due Current Loans Still Accruing Loans 
Commercial and agricullure $· 237 $ 46 $ 28!i $ 31,495 $ 31,780 $ $ 48 
Construction and development 4,694 4,694 
Farmland 1,764 1,764 
1-4 Res{dentlal mortgage 74 304 378 22,567 22,945 304 
Multifamily 5,358 5,356 
Consumer and other 2 2 2,173 2,175 ----·-·· 

Total $ 313 $ 352 $ 665 $ 60,051 $ 68,716 $ $ 352 

Impaired Loans - A loan is considered impaired when ii is probable that the Bank will be unabie to collect all 
contractual principal and interest payments when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of the loan 
agreement. Smaller balance homogenous loans may be collectively evaluated for impairment. Impaired loans are 
measured based on the estimated fair value of the collateral less estimated cost to sell if the loan is considered 
collateral dependent. Impaired loans not considered to be collateral dependent are measured based on the present 
value of expected future cash flows. The valuation of real estate collateral is subjective in nature and may be adjusted 
in future periods because of changes in economic conditions. Management considers third-party appraisals, as well 
as independent fair market value assessments in determining the estimated fair value of particular properties. In 
addition, as certain of these third-party appraisals and independent fair market value assessments are only updated 
periodically, changes in the values of specific properties may have occurred subsequent to the most recent 
appraisals. Accordingly, the amounts of any such potential changes and any related adjusbnents are generally 
recorded at the time such information ls received. When the measurement of the impaired loan is less than the 
recorded investment in the loan, impairment is recognized by creating or adjusting an allocation of the allowance for 
loan losses and uncollected accrued interest is reversed against interest income. If ultimate collection of principal is in 
doubt, all cash receipts on impaired loans are applied to reduce the principal balance. 
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ca FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued) 

The following table is a summary of information related to Impaired Joans as of December 31, 2016 {in 
thousands): 

Impaired Loans 
Unpaid Average Interest 

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income 
December 31, 2016 lnvestment111 Balance Allowance Investment Recognized 
With no related allowance recorded: 

Commercial and agriculture $ 1,758 $ 1,754 $ $ 1,843 $ 78 
Construcllon and development 94 94 97 5 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 565 584 582 7 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 4 3 7 

Subtotal 2,421 2,435 2,529 90 

With an allowance recorded: 
Commercial and agriculture 
Construction and development 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 221 219 6 225 15 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 

Subtotal 221 219 6 225 15 

Totals: 
Commercial and agriculture 1,758 1,754 1,843 78 
Conslruction and development 94 94 97 5 
Farmfand 
1-4 residential mortgage 786 803 6 807 22 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 4 3 7 

Total $ 2,642 $ 2,654 $ 6 $ 2,754 $ 105 

<11 Recorded investment is the loan balance, net of any charge-offs and deferred fees and costs. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLJDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued) 

The following table fs a summary of information related to impaired loans as of December 31, 2015 (in 
thousands}: 

Impaired Loans 
Unpaid Average Interest 

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income 
December 31, 2015 lnvestment11l Balance Allowance Investment Recogniied 
With no rela!ed allowance recorded: 

Commercial and agriculture $ 988 $ 1,009 $ $ 1,031 $ 61 
Construction and development 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 700 756 751 32 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 11 1 11 

Subtotal 1,699 1,768 1,793 93 

With an allowance recorded: 
Commercial and agriculture 1,355 1,352 01 1,384 39 
Construction and development 99 99 5 102 6 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 309 309 4 106 7 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 

Subtotal 1.763 1,760 90 1,592 52 

Totals: 
Commercial and agriculture 2,343 2,361 81 2,415 100 
Construction and development 99 99 5 102 6 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 1,009 1,067 4 857 39 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 11 11 

Total $ 3,462 $ 3,528 $ 90 $ 3,385 $ 145 

(ll Recorded investment is the loan balance, net of any charge-offs and deferred fees and costs. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued) 

Troubled Debt Restructuring - A troubled debt restructured loan ("TOR") is a loan for which the Bank, for 
reasons related to the borrower's financial difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that the Bank would 
not otherwise consider. 

The loan terms which have been modified or restructured due to a borrower's financial difficulty, include but are 
not limlled to: a reduction in the stated interest rate; an extension of lhe maturity at an interest rate below current 
market; a reduction in the face amount of the debt; a reduction in the accrued interest; or re-aging, extensions, 
deferrals, and renewals. Troubled debt restructured loans are considered impaired and are individually 
evaluated for impairment. 

The following tabla sets forth information with respect to the Bank's troubled debt restruclurlngs as of 
December 31, 2016 (in thousands): 

Number 
of Contracts 

Troubled Debt Restructurings: 
Commercial and agriculture 5 
Construction and development 1 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 1 
Mult ifamily 
Consumer and other 1 

Total 8 

2016 

Pre-Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 1,519 
94 

199 

3 

$ 1,81 5 

Post· 
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 1,519 
94 

199 

3 

$ 1,815 

During 2016, the Bank did not have any modified loans that were considered to be a TDR. Restructured loans 
are deemed to be in default if they become past due by 30 days or more. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 6-Loans and the allowance for loan losses (continued} 

The following table sets forth information with respect to the Bank's troubled debt restructurings as of 
December 31, 2015 {in thousands): 

2015 
Post-

Pre-Modification Modification 
Outstanding Outstanding 

Number Recorded Recorded 
of Contracts Investment Investment 

Troubled Debt Restructurings: 
Commercial and agriculture 8 $ 2,268 $ 2,268 
Construction and development 99 99 
Farmland 
1-4 residential mortgage 2 371 371 
Multifamily 
Consumer and other 11 11 

12 $ 2,749 $ 2,749 

During 2015, the Bank modified one loan that was considered to be a TOR, the terms of which were modified. 
The Bank had no such TDR's modified during the year ended December 31, 2015, that subsequently defaulted. 
Restructured loans are deemed to be in default if they become past due by 30 days or more. 

Note 7-Premises and equipment 

Following is a summary of the Company's premises and equipment at December 31 : 

Land 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Total 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 
848,037 $ 848,037 

1,934,071 1,918,771 
15,140 15,140 

770,050 756,374 
3,567,298 3,538,322 

(1,337,627) (1,214,584} 

2,229,671 =$====2*=,3=2~3,:73=8= 

Depreciation and amortization amounting to $123,043 and $130,699 for the years ended December31, 2016 
and 2015, respectively, is included in occupancy and equipment expense and data processing expense. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 8-Real estate owned 

The following summarizes the activity in real estate owned: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Proceeds from sales 
Loss on sales 
Writedowns 

Balance, end of year 

Note 9-Deposlts 

Deposit account balances at December 31 are summarized as follows: 

Demand 
Savings 
Money market accounts 
Time Deposits 

2016 2015 
$ 1,746,243 $ 3,312,105 

(309,257) (1,326,679) 
(40,414) (127,087) 

{112,09G~ 

$ 1,396,572 $ 1,746,243 

2016 2015 
(Dollars fn thousands) 

$ 17,213 $ 12,779 
3,464 3,491 

37,983 35,955 
____ 3-'3,:....4_33_ 38,314 

$ 92,093 $ 90,539 =========== 
At December 31, 2016, the scheduled maturities of time deposits (dollars in thousands) are as follows: 

Years Ending December 31( 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Total 

$ 

$ 

10,545 
10,558 

B,602 
1,773 
1,955 

33,433 

The above table includes lime deposits of $250,000 and over, which at December 31, 2016 and 2015, totaled 
$6.4 million and $7.1 million, respectively. 

Deposits from directors, executive officers, and their affiliates at December 31, 2016 and 2015, amounted to 
approximately $6.2 million and $3.7 million, respectively. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 10-0perating leases 

The Company leases certain assets under long-term leases. The majority of the Company's leases are 
operating leases for a period of three to five years with renewal options. 

Rental expense amounting to $30,726 and $28,999 during the years ended December31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, is included in occupancy and equipment expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Years Endlt1g December 31, 

2017 
2018 
2019 

Total 

Note 11-Borrowings and FHLB Advances 

$ 

$ 

24,068 
9,028 

158 

33,254 

In 2016 and 2015, the Company did not have an unsecured federal funds line. The Company has a line of credit 
with the Federal Reserve Bank in the total available amounts of $6.0 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, which is secured by substantially all of the Company's mortgage-backed securities. The Company 
did not use the line of credit in 2016 or 2015. 

The Company has borrowings from the FHLB. Advances frorn the FHLB are secured by eligible securities and 
are listed below. The FHLB has placed a $27,269,250 cap on the amount the Company can borrow. 

Advances from the FHLB of Atlanta consisted of the following at December 31: 

Interest 
Maturity Rate 2016 2015 

January 20, 2017 0.61% $ 5,000,000 $ 
December 13, 2017 2.85% 5,000,000 

$ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000 

The Company prepaid the outstanding advance due on December 13, 2017 during October 2016. The 
prepayment resulted In a penalty of $110,860, which is included in other non-interest expenses on the 
consolidated statement of operations. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 11-Borrowings and FHLB Advances (continued) 

On July 8, 2005, the Company formed CB Financial Capital Trust I, a Connecticut statutory trust (the "Trust") . 
On July 12, 2005, the Trust issued and sold $5,000,000 of the Trust's Floating rate preferred securities (lhe 
"Trust Preferred Securities") to an institutional investor in a private placeme11l and Issued $155,000 in common 
$ecurities (the "Common Securities") to the Company. The Trust Preferred Securities are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Company with respect lo distributions and amounts 
payable upon liquidation, redemption, or repayment. The proceeds from the Trust's sale of the Trust Preferred 
Securities and its sale of the Common Securities were used by the Trust to purchase $5,155,000 of the 
Company's Floating junior subordinated notes (the "Notes·). The net proceeds to lhe Company from Its sale of 
the Notes to the Trust were invested in the Bank as additional capital to support growth and for other general 
corporate purposes. The Notes and the Trust Preferred Securities bear an interest rate of 185 basis points over 
the three-month LIBOR (London Inter-Bank Offered Rate). The Trust Preferred Securities generally rank equal 
to the Common Securities in priority of payment, but will rank prior to Common Securities if, and so long as, the 
Company fails to make principal or Interest payment on the Notes. The Notes and Trust Preferred Securities 
each have 30-year lives and are callable by the Company or the Trust, at their option. The Notes qualify as 
Tier I capital under Federal Reserve Board guidelines. The Company has not included the Trust in the 
consolidated entity. However, the Notes issued by the Company and purchased by the Trust are included on fhe 
consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the related Interest expense continues to be included on the 
consolidated income statements. The Company elected to defer interest payments on the Notes starting on 
March 15, 2010 until June 15, 2015. Interest expense on the notes was $133,326 and $132,527 for the years 
ended December31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Interest payments made on the Notes totaled $584,121 and 
$686,927 for years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Interest payable on the Notes amounted 
to approximately $6,849 and $5, 177 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

Note 12-lncome taxes 

The significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows: 

2016 2015 
Current tax provision: 

Federal $ 12,765 $ 

Total current taxes 12 765 

Deferred tax provision: 
Federal (1,905,979) 
State (85,310) 

Total deferred taxes (1,991,289) 

Provision for Income taxes $ (1,978,5242 $ 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 12-lncome taxes (continued) 

The difference between the provision for income taxes and the amounts computed by applying the statutory 
federal Income tax rate of 34% to income before income taxes fs summarized below: 

2016 2015 
Tax expense computed at the statutory federal rate $ 187,716 $ 204,311 

(Decrease) increase resulting from: 
State income taxes, net of federal effect (85,310) 
Nontaxable income (38,825) (116,598) 
Reduction in NOL DTA due to IRC 382 limits 3,085,441 
Other, net (349) (915) 
Valuation allowance (5,127,197) (86,798) 

Income taxes benefit $ (1,978,524) $ 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and tile amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant 
components of deferred taxes at December 31 are as follows: 

2016 2015 
Deferred tax assets relating to: 

Allowance for loan losses $ 172,801 $ 
Pre-opening costs and expenses 435 569 
Interest income on non-accrual loans 20,470 34,343 
Investment and real estate owned impairment 149,352 175,921 
Operating loss carryforwards 1,717,860 5,032,402 
Investment securities available-for-sale 83,032 4,616 
ATM Credit 11,934 
Other 72,740 68,842 

Total deferred tax assets 2,228,624 5,316,693 

Valuation alfowance (96,425l (5,223,622} 

Total net deferred tax assets 2,132,199 93,071 

Deferred tax liabilities relating to: 
Allowance for Joan losses 28,327 
Premises and equipment differences 29,341 43,644 
Prepaid expenses 26,376 21.100 
Other 2,160 

Total deferred tax llablflties 57,877 93,071 

Net deferred tax asset $ 2,074,322 $ 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 12-lncome taxes (continued) 

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and, if it Is more likely than not that 
a tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to 
net realizable value. Management has determined that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assels will be 
realizable up to the recorded value. As a result management has reduced Its valuation allowance from 
December 31, 2015, of $5,223,622 down to $96.425 as of December 31, 2016. Included in deferred tax assets 
are the tax benefits derived from federal net operating loss carry forwards of $13.4 million and state net 
operating loss carry forwards of $18 million which begin to expire in 2030 and 2028, respectively. 

Note 13-0ther non-interest expense 

The major components of other non-interest expense for the years ended December 31 are as follows: 

Postage, printing, and office supplies 
Advertising and promotion 
Professional services 
FDIC insurance premiums 
Other 

Total 

Note 14-Regulatory matters 

$ 

$ 

2016 
50,845 
53,218 

178,077 
102,559 
384,181 

768,880 

2015 
$ 56,638 

46,384 
222,777 
211,637 
314,183 

$ 851,619 

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking 
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional 
discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's 
consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guldellnes and the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their 
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The 
Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about 
components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve Board approved and published the final Basel Ill Capital Rules establishing a 
new comprehensive capital framework for U.S. banking organizations. ThFl rules implement the Basel Ill 
Committee's December 2010 framework ("Basel Ill") for strengthening international capital standards as well as 
certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. The Basel Ill Capital Rules, among other things, (i) introduce a new 
capital measure called "Common Equity Tier 1" ("CET1"), (ii) specify that Tier 1 capital consists of CET1 and 
"Additional Tier 1 cap!tal" instruments meeting specified requirements, (iii) define CET1 narrowly by requiring 
that most deductionsfadjustments to regulatory capital measures be made to CET1 and not lo the other 
components of capital, and (iv) expand the scope of the deductions from and adjustments to capital as 
compared to existing regulations. The Basel Ill Capital Rules were effective for the Bank on January 1, 2015 
(subject to a phase-in period for certain components). CET1 capital for the Bank consists of common stock, 
related paid-In capital, and retained earnings. In connection with the adoption of the Basel Ill Capital Rules, we 
elected to opt-out of the requirement to include accumulated other comprehensive income In CET1. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 14~Regulatory matters (continued) 

The Bank's actual capital amounts (in thousands) and ratios are presented in the table below: 

Minimum 
For the Bank Requirements 

For 
Capital Capital Capita I 

Amount Ratio Adequacy 
As of December 31, 2016 

Total capital - (to risk-weighted assets) $ 11,815 17.05% 8.00% 
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 10,940 15.79% 6.00% 
CET1 risk based capital (to risk-weighted assets) 10,940 15.79% 4.50% 
Leverage - Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 10,940 10.19% 4.00% 

As of December 31, 2015 
Total capital - (to risk-weighted assets) $ 10,728 15.34% B.00% 
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 9,850 14.08% 6.00% 
CET1 risk based capital (to risk-weighted assets) 9,850 14.08% 4.50% 
Leverage - Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 9,850 9.12% 4.00% 

The Company and the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Supervisory Authorities") entered into a Consent Order effective February 11, 
2010. Pursuant to the Private Pfacement, which occurred in June 2015, as discussed in Note 2, the Company 
used a portion of the proceeds to reduce deferred interest on its subordinated debt. AddiUonally, the Company 
has focused on improving net income by reducing operating expenses, as well as improving their capital ratios. 
Based on the improvements of the Company's financial position, and the requirements of the Consent Order 
being met, the Consent Order was terminated by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on November 4, 
2015. The Company continues to comply with further conditions agreed upon by the Company's Board of 
Directors and the Supervisory Authorities. 

Note 15-Commitments and contingencies 

Litigation - Jn the normal course of business the Company is involved in various legal proceedings. After 
consultation with legal counsel, management believes that any liability resulting from such proceedings wUI not 
be material to the consolidated financial statements. 

Off-Bafance Sheet Risk - The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the 
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include 
commitments to extend credit, undisbursed lines of credit, and standby letters of credit. Those instruments 
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the 
balance sheets. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the 
Company has in particular classes of financial instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in 
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. 
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CB FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

Note 15-Commitments and contingencies (continued) 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 
conditions established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination 
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without 
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The 
Company evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis, The amount of collateral 
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank, upon extension of credit is based on management's credit 
evaluation of the borrower. Collateral obtained varies but may include real estate, stocks, bonds, and certificates 
of deposit. 

A summary of the contract amount of the Company's exposure to off-balance sheet credit risk as of 
December 31 is as follows: 

2016 2015 
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk: 

Commitments to extend credit $ 2,527 $ 1,982 
Undisbursed lines of credit 5,883 5,657 
Commercial and standby letters of credit 5,591 4,369 

Total $ 14,001 $ 12,008 

Note 16-Disclosures about fair values of financial instruments 

Financial instruments include cash and due from banks, interest-earning deposits in banks, federal funds sold, 
time deposits, investments, loans, stock in the FHLB of Atlanta, bank-owned lffe Insurance, deposit accounts, 
and borrowings. Fair value estimates are made at a specific moment in time, based on relevant market 
information and lnfonnation about the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any premium or 
discount that could result from offering for sale at one lime the Company's entire holdings of a particular 
financial instrument. Because no active market readily exists for a portion of the Company's financial 
instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current 
economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial Instruments, and other factors. These estimates are 
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be 
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that value. 

Cash and Due from Banks, Interest-Earning Deposits in Banks, and Repurchase Agreements - The carrying 
amounts for cash and due from banks, interest-earning deposits in banks, and federal funds sold approximate 
fair value because of the short maturities of those Instruments. 

Certificates of Deposit - The fair value of time deposits is estimated using rates currently offered for Instruments 
of similar maturity. 

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale - Fair value for Investment securities equals quoted market price if 
such Information is available. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is est!mated using quoted 
market prices for slmilar securities. 
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Note 16-Disclosures about fair values of financial instruments (continued) 

Loans - For certain homogenous categories of loans, such as res!dentlal mortgages, fair value is estimated 
using the quoted marl<et prices for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan 
characteristics. The fair value of other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the 
current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same 
remaining maturities. No estimation has been included for credit quality. 

Accrued Interest - The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value. 

Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta - The fair value for FHLB stock approximates carrying value, 
based on the redemption provisions of the FHLB. 

Investment in Ban/(-Owned Life Insurance - The carrying value of life insurance approximates fair value 
because this investment is carried at cash surrender value, as determined by the insurer. 

Deposits and Borrowings - The fair value of demand, savings, money market, and NOW deposits is the amount 
payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of time deposits and borrowings is estimated based on 
discounting cash flows using the rates currently offered for instruments of similar remaining maturities. 

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk- With regard to financial instruments with off-balance sheet 
risk discussed in Note 15, it is not practicable to estimate the fair value of future financing commitments. 

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments, none of which are held 
for trading purposes, are as follows at December 31: 

2016 2015 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

(In thousands) 
Financial Assets: 

Cash and due from banks $ 3,381 $ 3,381 $ 2,879 $ 2,879 
Interest-earning deposits in banks 4,275 4,275 3,847 3,847 
Repurchase Agreements 2,488 2,488 
Certificates of deposit 1,060 1,060 1,550 1,550 
Investment securities available-for-sale 16,935 16,935 20,838 20,838 
Accrued interest receivable 381 381 327 327 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 307 307 398 398 
lnvestment in bank-owned life insurance 4,015 4,015 3,902 3,902 
Loans, net 70,983 71,431 67,593 68,466 

Financial Liabilities: 
Deposits 92,093 83,882 90,539 83,714 
Borrowings 10,155 11,116 10,155 10,81(3 
Accrued interest payable 22 22 25 25 
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Note 16-Disclosures about fair values of financial Instruments (continued} 

The Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets 
and liabilities are traded and the rellablllty of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active 
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for 
substantially the full term of the financial instrument. 

Level 3 - tnputs to the valuation methodology are unobseNable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

The followi11g sections provide a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at 
fair value, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 

Investment Securities Available-For-Sale - Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are 
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities would Include highly liquid government 
bonds, mortgage products, and exchange traded equitles. lf quoted market prices are not available, then fair 
values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or 
discounted cash flow. Level 2 securities would include U.S. agency securities, mortgage-backed agency 
securities, obligations of states and political subdivisions, and certain corporate, asset-backed, and other 
securities. In certain cases where there is limited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation, 
securities are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. Currently, all of the Bank's securities are 
considered to be Level 2 securities. 

fmpaired Loans - Impairment of a loan is based on a loan's observable market price or the fair value of the 
collateral of a collateral dependent loan. Fair value of the loan's collateral, when the loan is dependent on 
collateral, is determined by appraisals or independent valuation which is then adjusted for the cost related to 
liquldatlon of the collateral. 

Real Estate Owned - Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to real estate 
owned. Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is recorded initially at estimated fair value of the property 
less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure. The initial recorded value may be subsequently reduced 
by additional allowances, which are charged to earnings if the estlmated fair value of the property less estimated 
selling costs declines below the initial recorded value. Fair value is based upon independent market prices, 
appraised values of the collateral, or management's estimation of the value of the collateral. 
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Note 16-Disclosures about fair values of financial instruments (continued) 

Recurring Fair Value - The table below presents the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis (dollars in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 Total Levell Level2 Level3 
Investment securities available-for-sale: 

Municipal securlties $ 3,133 $ $ 3,133 $ 
Government sponsored enterprises 8,561 8,561 
Mortgage-backed securities 5,241 5,241 

Total assets at fair value $ 16,935 $ $ 16,935 $ 

December 31, 2015 Total Levell Level2 Level 3 
Investment securities avallable-for-sale: 

Municipal securities $ 1,221 $ $ 1,221 $ 
Government sponsored enterprises 8,717 8,717 
Mortgage-bacl(ed securities 10,900 10,900 

Total assets at fair value $ 20,838 $ $ 20,838 $ 

Non-recurring Fair Value - The table below presents the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at 
fair vafue on a nonrecurring basis (dollars in thousands): 

December 31, 2016 Total Levell Level 2 Level 3 
Impaired loans $ 2,642 $ $ $ 2,642 
Rear estate owned 1,397 1,397 

Total assets at fair value $ 4,039 $ $ $ 4,039 

December 31, 2015 Total Levell Level2 Level3 
Impaired loans $ 3,462 $ $ $ 3,462 
Real estate owned 1,746 1,746 

Total assets al fair value $ 5,208 $ $ $ 5,208 
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Note 16-Disclosures about fair values of financial instruments (continued) 

Level 3 Vafuation Techniques - For Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring or non­
recurring basis as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value 
measurements were as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Impaired Loans 

Fair Value at 
De comber 31, 

2016 
$ 2,642 

Olhar Real estate Owned $ 1,397 

Impaired Loans 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2015 
$ 3,462 

Other Real Estate Owned $ 1,746 

Valuation 
Tnchnlqun 

Appraised Value/Comparable Sales 
Present Value of Future Cash Flows 

Appraised Value/ 
Comparable Sales 

Valuatfon 
Technique 

Appraised Value/Comparable Sales 
Present Value of Future Cash Flows 

Appraised Value/ 
Comparable Sales 

Note 17-Employee and director benefit plans 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Drscounl to reflecl current 

market conditions and ultimate 
colleclabllity 

Discount lo reflecl current 
market condlllons and ultlma!e 

Significant 
Unobserv;ible 

Inputs 
Discount to reflect current 

market conditions and ultimate 
collecfabillly 

Discount lo reRecl current 
market conditions and ullirnale 

Significant 
Unobservable 
Inputs Value 

0% - 10% 

0%-10% 

Sign incant 
Unobservable 
Inputs Value 

0%· 10% 

0%-10% 

401 (k) Plan - The Company has a 401 (k) Plan (the "Plan") in which substantially all employees participate. 
Match contributions vest to the employee equally over a four-year period. In 2015, the Company Instituted a 
policy to match 100% of employee contributions up to 6%. The 401(k) employer match was $49,748 and 
$16,598 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
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Note 18-Parent companv financial data 

CB Financial Corporalfon became the holding company for Cornerstone Bank on June 8, 2005. Following are 
condensed financial statements of CB Financial Corporation as of and for the years ended December 3 i, 2016 
and 2015 (presented in thousands): 

ASSETS 
Cash on deposit In subsidiary 
Investment in subsidiary bank 
other assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Junior subordinated debentures 
other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Stockholders' Equity: 
Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated deficit 

Condensed Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total Stockholders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Condensed Statements of Operations 
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

Equity In earnings of bank subsidiary 

Other income 

Interest expense 
Other expense 

Net Income 

$ 

$ 

2016 2015 

$ 63 
12,388 9,598 

274 357 

12,662 $ 10,018 

5,155 $ 5,155 
7 5 

5,162 5,160 

18,233 18,233 
(10,589) (13,123) 

(144) (252) 

7,500 4 858 

12,662 $ 10,018 

2016 2015 
2,682 $ 774 

6 22 
{133) (133) 

(21) {62) 

2,534 =$====;:;6;;.,01= 
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Note 18-Parent company financial data (continued) 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash used in operating activities: 
Equity ln earnings of bank subsidiary 
Increase (decrease) in other assets 
Increase (decrease) in other If abilities 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flow from Investing activities: 
Investment in subsidiary 

Net cash used In Investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities; 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of cost 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Note 19-Subsequent events 

$ 

$ 

2016 

2,534 $ 

(2,682) 
83 

2 

(63) 

(63) 

63 

$ 

2015 

(60) 

(774) 
(40) 

(549) 

(1,423) 

(2,006) 

(2,006) 

2,826 

2,826 

58 
5 

63 

The Company has evaluated st1bsequent events through March 21, 2017, in connection with the preparation of 
these consolidated financial statements, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
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CPAs & Advl;ors 

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors 
CB Financial Corporation and Subsidiary 
Wilson, North Carolina 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CB Financial Corporation and Subsidiary {the 
"Company") for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated 
March 21, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated November 28, 2016. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT FINDINGS 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Company are described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. No 
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2016 or 
2015. We noted no transactions entered into by the Company during the years for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
consolidated financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
signlficantry from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the consolidated financial statements 
were: 

Management's estimate of the allowance for loan losses is based on an analysis of historical collection 
trends, current borrower relationships, lending levels, industry factors, and current and anticipated 
economic conditions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance for loan 
losses In order for us to determine whether the allowance for loan losses is reasonable in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, taken 
as a whole. While the procedures used by management and the amount of the allowance seem reasonable 
at this time, differences between the allowance for loan losses and actual results may be material. 

Management's estimate of the valuation of other real estate owned is based on appraisals provided by 
outside appraisers approved by the Company's Board of Directors. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used in the valuation to determine that they seem reasonable in relation to the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, taken as a whole. 
While the procedures used by management and the amount recorded for other real estate owned seem 
reasonable at this time, there will usually be differences between actual functional use and the estimates 
used and these differences may be material. 

Management's estimate of the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale securities are based 
an certain assumptions, discount rates, and estimated future cash flows. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop these estimates to determine that they seem reasonable in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, taken 
as a whole. While the procedures used by management and these estimates seem reasonable et this time, 
differences between these estimates and actual results may be material. 
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Management's esUmate of the valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets, which is required if it is more 
likely than not that the tax benefits will not be fully realized, is based upon management's judgment of various 
future events and uncertainties, including the timing and amount of future income and the implementation of 
various tax plans to maximize realfzation of the deferred tax asset. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. 

·The consolidated financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant dlfflculties in deallng with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements Identified during the audit, other than those 
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them lo the appropriate level of management. No such misstatements 
were noted. 

Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the consolidated financial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course 
of our audit. 

Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation feller dated March 21, 2017. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the Company's consolidated financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultaht has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there 
were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Company's auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retenlion. 

This information Is Intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and management of 
CB Financial Corporation and Subsidiary and is not Intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

c1~&~t1-,P 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
March 21. 2017 · 
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